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Members, Dane County Board of Supervisors



Elected Officials and Department Heads

FROM:
Kathleen M. Falk



Dane County Executive

RE:

Fiscal Measures in Response to the State Budget

As I detailed in my March 7th memorandum, the Governor’s proposed 2011-2013 Biennial Budget will result in significant revenue reductions to the County.  We continue to refine our preliminary estimates as we learn more and the numbers are growing.  We now believe that we face a general-purpose revenue loss of $506,000 in 2011 and cuts of $3.3 million in 2012 and $4.2 million in 2013.  These represent increased reductions of about $1 million in both 2012 and 2013 from preliminary estimates.  In addition to these GPR reductions, the Governor’s Budget proposes to eliminate another $4 million currently used to support approximately 80 employees in the County’s Economic Assistance and Child Support programs.  Passage of the Budget Repair Bill included the ominous provisions that enable the Secretary of Health & Human Services to reduce the number of recipients receiving MA and the amount of assistance received by different individuals.  Although we cannot yet quantify these reductions, they could negatively and drastically affect many of our citizens and our Human Services budget.  In light of the developments, this memo updates the County Board on the County’s current fiscal condition and outlines the austerity measures I will take in response to State reductions in revenue. 

Our Department of Administration has completed its preliminary general fund balance estimate for 2010.  This estimate shows that our general fund balance is approximately $900,000 higher than the estimate contained in the 2011 Budget.  This strong performance will provide more of a buffer as the new County Executive and the County Board construct what will be a very difficult budget for 2012.  The net improvement of $900,000 includes the improved sales tax figures I provided you last month.  As requested by the Personnel & Finance Committee, the Controller will review the detailed preliminary results with the Committee at their next meeting.

Outside of the state budget, the first two months of the year have seen largely positive news for the County’s fiscal condition.  Sales tax collections have continued strong.  The March report, covering January, will probably not be in for a week but a state report on tax collections continued to show statewide increase in sales tax.  As part of the fiscal conservatism of this budget, the ATC payment was re-budgeted for receipt this year at a lower amount because ATC had presented a reduced payment to the Public Service Commission.  Corporation Counsel successfully contested that point with the result that the County will receive $245,000 more than budgeted from ATC this year.
  We have also had two unanticipated sales of land (a surplus part of a road easement and a small delinquent parcel) that have brought in about $42,000.

Emergency Management has also reported welcome news regarding reimbursement we sought for the blizzard that occurred in early March.  As you will recall, that snow event caused a suspension of nonessential County operations and significant overtime and equipment expenses for our Highway Department, Sheriff’s Office, and other essential services.  I directed the Department of Emergency Management to file a claim with the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) to seek reimbursement of these extraordinary costs, and it appears very likely that the County will receive approximately $250,000 in federal disaster assistance.  

Finally, many of you may be concerned about the costs of providing assistance to the Capitol Police during the weeks of demonstrations, rallies, and protests around the State Capitol.  The Sheriff’s Office has spent hundreds of hours assisting in the effort to maintain a peaceful environment, and he negotiated a memorandum of understanding (MOU) with the State Department of Administration to protect the County from ultimately incurring those costs.  Under the MOU, the Sheriff’s Office will be reimbursed for staff wages, overtime, mileage, and any lodging expenses incurred for providing this assistance.  

All of these efforts will help to offset State Budget reductions and prevent unexpected cost overruns.  However, I think it is prudent to take additional measures to ensure the County maintains a sound fiscal posture through 2011 for at least two reasons:  1)  to better position the County to deal with the unknown and variable factors in the Governor’s budget, most of which could harm the County and, 2)  to ensure the new County Executive has options in responding to these cuts and in developing the 2012 budget.  In an effort to promote these goals, I am imposing the following austerity measures effective immediately:

1. Hiring Freeze 

All hiring will be frozen.  This freeze will apply to both GPR and non-GPR funded departments.  The freeze is broadened to increase salary savings in all departments and to increase the number of vacancies countywide due to the potential elimination of approximately 80 employees in the Economic Assistance and Child Support Divisions.  Assuming the State Legislature accepts the Governor’s recommendation to consolidate, contract out, and reduce these services, it will cause an extensive bumping process that will impact all departments.  Increasing the number of vacancies will limit the loss of employment and disruption in the workforce.  Departments may use the appeal process currently in place to petition for authorization to proceed with priority recruitments.  

2. Limited Term Employee Restrictions

Limited term employee (LTE) hiring will also be frozen.  Appeals to hire limited term employees may be made on the same basis as regular employees.  LTE recruitments that have been authorized as of March 17, 2011 will be allowed to proceed.

3. Reclassification and Reallocation Suspension

Reclassification and reallocation requests will be temporarily suspended.  Requests that have been submitted prior to March 17, 2011 will continue to be analyzed but recommendations will be suspended, and no new reclassification requests will be accepted.

4. Conference and Training Restrictions

Conference, training, and travel requests will be scrutinized more closely.  Conference and training requests that are required to maintain certifications that are required as a condition of employment will continue to be approved.

5. Review of Essential Purchases Over $1,000

The Controller will analyze any purchase order over $1,000 to insure that only high priority, mission critical purchases are being processed.  Departments may be asked to submit supplemental information in order to assist with this analysis, and some purchasing may be suspended.

I am not recommending capital freezes at this point.  As you recall, the 2011 budget has carefully planned capital borrowing at substantially lesser levels than 2010.  Much of this borrowing is for necessary projects (the Interoperable Radio Project and the Computer-Aided Dispatch System are good examples).  Much smaller amounts of borrowing are for projects in partnership with local governments (highways and PARC, for example).  The Zoo’s Arctic Passage, the other major capital project, is about to go out for bids.  I think it makes sense for the Board and new County Executive to review those bids this summer and then decide on that project’s timing.

Thank you.




� Except for the delayed ATC payment, the 2010 ending balance would have been positive.
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